
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

October 01, 2018 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  October 01, 2018 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

October 01, 2018 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Call to Order 

ITEM  6:00 PM Closed Session 

ITEM  7:00 PM Reconvene BOC Meeting / Welcome 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

1. Rev. William Sawyer 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

1. Department Update - Brian Lannon, Soil & Water Conservation 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Unified Development Ordinance Update - Dan Porter 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  October 01, 2018 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Rosenwald Community Center - Ken Bowman 

C. Public Services Complex / Administration Campus - Ken Bowman 

D. Vanguard Modular Building Systems - Ken Bowman 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

1. Tourism Development Authority - Tom White (reappointment) 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

1. BOC Special Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2018 

2. BOC Minutes - September 10, 2018 

3. FY 18-19 Budget Amendments 

4. Tax Collection Report 

5. Refunds Over $100.00 

6. Set Public Hearing - Unified Development Ordinance 

ITEM 9. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. Library Report 

ITEM 10. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 11. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.1 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Soil & Water Conservation 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Department Update - Brian Lannon, Soil & Water 

Conservation 

 

Attachments: What is a Soil and Water Conservation District (002)

 (PDF) 

Board Retreat -Mission objectives actions (DOCX) 

Clearing and Snagging Projects Summary

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Brian Lannon will give an update from Soil & Water Conservation. 

4.1

Packet Pg. 4



4.1.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
at

 is
 a

 S
o

il 
an

d
 W

at
er

 C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
21

71
 :

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
- 

B
ri

an
 L

an
n

o
n

, S
o

il 
&

 W
at

er
 C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
)



4.1.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
at

 is
 a

 S
o

il 
an

d
 W

at
er

 C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
21

71
 :

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
- 

B
ri

an
 L

an
n

o
n

, S
o

il 
&

 W
at

er
 C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
)



4.1.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
at

 is
 a

 S
o

il 
an

d
 W

at
er

 C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
(0

02
) 

 (
21

71
 :

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
- 

B
ri

an
 L

an
n

o
n

, S
o

il 
&

 W
at

er
 C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
)



Soil and Water Conservation Department Mission and 

Objectives 
 

Mission Statements developed for the Camden Soil and Water Conservation 

department are as follows:  

1. To foster voluntary, incentive-driven conservation of soil, water and related 

natural resources thru the North Carolina Ag. Cost Share Programs (NCACSP) for 

the benefit of the environment, economy and all citizens.  

2. To plan and manage maintenance for stormwater drainage within the county and 

monitor factors that affect stormwater drainage to protect, to the extent 

practical, the citizens of the County from the loss of life and property damage 

from flooding and pollution. 

3. To reach out and educate citizens on land use and development and the need for 

sustainability using best management practices to protect and improve soil and 

water quality as the county grows and prospers because as Franklin Delano 

Roosevelt said, “A nation that destroys its soil destroys itself.”     

Objective and Actions for Mission 1: 

To develop conservation plans for agricultural lands in the county and contract with 

cooperators to install best management practices with financial assistance from the 

Division of Soil and Water Conservation to improve water quality and soil conservation.  

Also to provide technical assistance to land owners installing best management 

practices (BMPs).   

Objectives and Actions for Mission 2: 

To plan and manage drainage maintenance projects recommended by county 

Watershed Advisory Committees and manage the Aquatic Weed Control Program and 

Beaver Management Program projects within the county.   

To request technical and planning guidance from the US Army Corp of Engineers Flood 

Plain Management Services needed to support effective flood plain management of the 

South Mills watershed and the possibility of restoring the outlet to the Perquimans River 

from the Great Dismal Swamp Wildlife Refuge that was closed by construction on Hwy 

158 in Perquimans County many years ago.   

4.1.b

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
ar

d
 R

et
re

at
 -

M
is

si
o

n
 o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 a

ct
io

n
s 

 (
21

71
 :

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
- 

B
ri

an
 L

an
n

o
n

, S
o

il 
&

 W
at

er
 C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
)



Soil and Water recommends developing Standard Operating Procedures for drainage 

system maintenance and a “dumping ordinance.”   

Also as a certified floodplain manager assist the Planning Department with Community 

Rating System (CRS) and National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). 

Objective and Actions for Mission 3: 

To conduct or assist various education and outreach programs sponsored by the 

Division of Soil and Water Conservation, NFIP, and local schools including poster, 

bookmark, speech and slide contests, the Envirothon, field days, workshops, FFA 

forestry and land judging competitions. 

4.1.b

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
ar

d
 R

et
re

at
 -

M
is

si
o

n
 o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 a

ct
io

n
s 

 (
21

71
 :

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
- 

B
ri

an
 L

an
n

o
n

, S
o

il 
&

 W
at

er
 C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
)



Summary of Watershed Projects 

 

North River Watershed 

6/21/2017 Run Swamp Canal- Hwy 34 to Hwy 158     $10,000 DRA 

4/11/2016 Run Swamp Canal – Buckhorn Ditch around bend to Hwy 34 culverts  $13,275 

10/16/2015 Run Swamp Canal – bend to Hwy 34 culverts     $ 2,360 

2/10/2015 Run Swamp Canal – Hwy 34 to Indiantown Creek (State Funds)  $10,000 

4/19/2013 Buckhorn Ditch to Indiantown Road (Farmer Funded)  $ 8,976 

 

Sawyer’s Creek Watershed  

3/14/2017 Bell Farm Estates & Sawyer’s Creek 343 to Sawyer Creek Road Bridge $2,665 DRA 

8/26/2015 Seymour Drive to NC 158      $11,760 

8/26/2016 Scotland Road to Sawyer’s Creek Road & Spur    $22,125 

 

Shiloh Watershed 

3/22/2017 Telephone Exchange Ditch      $7,965 

6/21/2017 Bartlett’s Landing to Pasquotank River     $10,000 DRA 

6/21/2017 Bell Farm Ditch, Wiremesh Ditch, Dailey Road    $8,000 DRA 

8/26/2015 Trotman Road to Portahonk Creek & Tributary    $7,938 

  Dailey Road to Pasquotank River     $7,644 

5/2/2016 Bartlett’s Landing to Pasquotank River     $9,440 

 

South Mills Watershed 

8/26/2015 Elm Street to Water Plant Shed      $8,526 

  Main Street to Water Plant Shed      

3/28/2016 NC 343 North to Joyce Creek      $12,390 

 

 

4.1.c

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

le
ar

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

n
ag

g
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

 (
21

71
 :

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
- 

B
ri

an
 L

an
n

o
n

, S
o

il 
&

 W
at

er
 C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Old Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   UDO Update - Dan Porter 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Dan Porter will give a brief status report on the revised Unified Development Ordinance. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 11



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   August Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20180925110223399.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:  August Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 12



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

10
22

33
99

.p
d

f 
 (

21
79

 :
 A

u
g

u
st

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

10
22

33
99

.p
d

f 
 (

21
79

 :
 A

u
g

u
st

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

10
22

33
99

.p
d

f 
 (

21
79

 :
 A

u
g

u
st

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

10
22

33
99

.p
d

f 
 (

21
79

 :
 A

u
g

u
st

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

10
22

33
99

.p
d

f 
 (

21
79

 :
 A

u
g

u
st

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

10
22

33
99

.p
d

f 
 (

21
79

 :
 A

u
g

u
st

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

10
22

33
99

.p
d

f 
 (

21
79

 :
 A

u
g

u
st

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Rosenwald Community Center - Ken Bowman 

 

Attachments: Rosenwald Community Center (PDF) 

 

See attached. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 20



6.B.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
se

n
w

al
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
en

te
r 

 (
21

83
 :

 R
o

se
n

w
al

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

en
te

r 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



6.B.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
se

n
w

al
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
en

te
r 

 (
21

83
 :

 R
o

se
n

w
al

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

en
te

r 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Public Services Complex / Administration Campus - Ken 

Bowman 

 

Attachments: 2018.08.30 - Camden County Admin Building (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

This proposal, from SOLEX Architecture, is for the conceptual design of the 

Administration building with two options.  The Space Needs Study was used by the firm 

to determine the fee schedule. It should be noted there’s a significant amount of work 

that needs to be done to provide a desirable layout and agreeable renderings. Compared 

to the other firm the county worked with in the past, SOLEX’s fee is significantly lower.  

This project is included in the 2019-2023 CIP for the engineering and design of a new 

Administration campus complex on the acquired site across from the Historic 

Courthouse.  The ultimate goal of this project will be the centralization of County 

services into a “One Stop” method of service delivery which will allow our citizens to be 

served at a single County complex. Besides the immediate needs for administrative 

space, there is also significant interest for providing recreational and public meeting 

space which could house youth and adult programming. 

 

Recommendation: 

The Board of Commissioners accepts the proposal from SOLEX Architecture and authorizes the 

county manager to work with the firm to create initial conceptual designs.  In addition, 

authorize the chairman to sign contract on behalf of Camden County. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 23



 
Solex Architecture, Inc. 

641 Main Street 
Danville, Virginia 24541 

434.688.0767 
www.solexarchitecture.com 

 
August 30, 2018 
 
Mr. Ken Bowman, County Manager 
Camden County 
P.O. Box 190 
Camden, North Carolina 27921 
252-338-1919 
 
RE:  Professional Conceptual Design Services for a New Administration Facility 

Located Adjacent to 117 North Carolina Hwy 343 S, Camden, North Carolina 
 
Dear Mr. Bowman: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal for professional conceptual design services for a 
new administration facility across from the historic courthouse in Camden.  Below you will find our 
understanding of the project and our proposed scope of services. 
 
UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROJECT 

Camden County is exploring the option to consolidate multiple departments into a single facility.  This 
new building is to be located across from the historic courthouse.  Two design options are to be 
developed for the new County building.   Option 1 includes new spaces for the county civic departments 
including Administration, Parks and Recreation, Planning and Zoning, Water and Sewer and Taxes as well 
as the addition of a multipurpose space.  The NC Cooperative Extension would move to the existing 
administration building once it was vacated.  According to the Wooten Company’s Space Needs Study 
the following space allocation is needed for those departments: 

1. County Administration -  5 enclosed offices, 4 open offices, a conference room to seat at least 
8, a reception area, copy area, archive area and storage space.  If the program and budget 
allow, a formal council chamber is also desired.   

2. Parks and Recreation – 1 enclosed office, 2 open offices, storage space, a conference room to 
seat at least 8, and additional space for growth 

3. Planning and Zoning – 1 enclosed office, 6 open offices, and are for file storage 
4. Water and Sewer – 3 open offices, a conference room to seat at least 4, a conference room to 

seat at least 8, a space for locked files, a shared copy space with the Tax department, exterior 
drive up windows, and interior walkup windows 

5. Taxes – 1 enclosed office, 4 open offices, space for storage, space for locked files, and a shared 
copy space with the Water and Sewer department 

6. Multipurpose Space – a kitchen, elevated platform/stage, dividable open meeting space for 
seating of at least 200 around tables and the option to house a basketball court 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

08
.3

0 
- 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

  (
21

81
 :

 P
u

b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

o
m

p
le

x 
/ A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 C
am

p
u

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Mr. Bowman 
August 30, 2018 
Page 2 

 

Option 2 is for future expansion of the campus and includes the Senior Center, Register of Deeds, 
Sheriff’s Department and the addition of a new Library.  This could be an addition to the first phase or a 
separate facility(ies).  Wooten Company’s Space Needs Study shows that the senior center needs an 
exercise room, kitchen, pantry and dining area.  According to our meeting, the seating capacity of the 
senior center could be reduced to 100 to 120 around tables.  If this is an addition, it would be added on 
to the new County Building next to the multipurpose space to maximize space utilization.  The new 
County Building may also be expanded to add a new Library.   

Depending on the availability of physical and budgetary space, an addition for the Register of Deeds and 
Sheriff’s office may be considered.  If space is not available, plans for relocation to an another existing 
facility or renovations of their current buildings may be developed.  Due to the specialized nature of 
Sheriff’s offices, their security concerns and the lack of available information, the planning of this area 
will be added on an hourly as-needed basis.  Further discussions to determine a precise design scope are 
to be had at a later date. 

The new administration building may be a single story structure or contain two levels, at the discretion 
of the architect. 

Solex Architecture has experience with the requirements of these types of departments and assembling 
conceptual plans of this type.  We understand Camden County is seeking to develop two conceptual 
plans and, at the County’s option, computerized renderings of these two options.   

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Solex Architecture team will provide architecture services as described below.   
 
 CONCEPTUAL DESIGN SERVICES 

1. Review existing programmatic plans and input necessary to prepare schematic plans.  One site 
visit will be made to tour all departments to be considered.  Additional information gathering to 
be obtained through phone conversations and emailing questions to staff.   

2. Review existing topography. 
3. Perform preliminary code review to identify applicable requirements and handicap accessibility 

requirements for this type of facility. 
4. Develop the conceptual plan for Option 1 as described above. 
5. Submit and review with the Owner the schematic plan. 
6. Make revisions based on Owner critique (maximum of 2 revisions). 
7. Develop conceptual plans for both options.  
8. Develop conceptual site plans showing context of both options with the surrounding property 

and the historic courthouse, pedestrian/vehicular circulation and other unique site features. 
9. Meet with the Owner to review both schematic plans. 
10. Make minor revisions to the plans based on Owner feedback. 
11. Develop conceptual massing of the exterior of the building.  
12. Submit electronically to the Owner and review via conference call.  
13. Make revisions to the conceptual massing (maximum of 2 revisions). 
14. Finalize plans and conceptual massing. 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

08
.3

0 
- 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

  (
21

81
 :

 P
u

b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

o
m

p
le

x 
/ A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 C
am

p
u

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Mr. Bowman 
August 30, 2018 
Page 3 

 

15. Final deliverable to include a presentation board (24”x36”) and digital copy. 

 RENDERING SERVICES 

1. Discuss exterior building materials and color selections. 
2. Provide exterior near-photorealistic rendering for the two options. The renderings are to be of 

the exterior of the building from the vantage point of the existing courthouse or other location 
agreed to by all parties. 

3. Final deliverable to include a presentation board (24”x36”) and digital copy. 

ASSUMPTIONS 
 

• Two meetings to be held in Camden County. 
 
EXCLUSIONS 

 
• Detailed cost estimates.  
• Geotechnical investigation. 
• Subsurface utility mapping services. 
• Topographic, boundary, underground utility surveying. 
• Environmental Services, Wetland Delineation. 
• Civil, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing engineering. 
• Furniture, fixture and equipment selections and plans. 
• Fees/permits charged by any authority having jurisdiction, building permits and inspections. 
• Zoning assistance, for items such as rezoning, special use permits, etc. 
• “As-built” or Record Drawings. 

 
 

SCHEDULE AND FEE 
 
Solex Architecture anticipates these tasks taking approximately 60 days.  This schedule excludes 
extensive delays resulting from review and/or approval by the Owner, authority(ies) having jurisdiction 
or other agencies.  Solex Architecture proposes to provide the above scope of services on a lump sum 
fee amount as listed below:  
 
Conceptual Design  ........................................................................................................  $ 24,275.00 
Sheriff’s Office  ......................................................................................................  hourly as needed 
Computerized Renderings  ...............................................................................................  $ 3,500.00 
 
Presentations/meetings to county departments  

(other than two design meetings listed above) ………………………………………  $ 1,500.00/trip 
 
 
 
 
 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

08
.3

0 
- 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

  (
21

81
 :

 P
u

b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

o
m

p
le

x 
/ A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 C
am

p
u

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Mr. Bowman 
August 30, 2018 
Page 4 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
  
The proposal outlined above in this letter (the “Proposal”) is valid for 60 days, after which time Solex 
Architecture, Inc. (“Solex Architecture”) reserves the right to review and/or revise the terms.  Should the 
scope of work change from that listed in this Proposal, Solex Architecture reserves the right to modify this 
Proposal as necessary.  In the event that this Proposal is accepted by the undersigned recipient (the 
“Owner”), then the following terms govern the agreement between the parties (the “Agreement”). 
  
Invoices will be electronically sent to the Owner on the 15th of each month for work completed to 
date.  Payment is to be received by Solex Architecture within 30 days of the date on the invoice or a 
1.5% late fee per month will be applied.  If payment is not received within 60 days, an 8% late fee per 
month shall be assessed until such payment is received by Solex Architecture.  If payment is not received 
within 30 days, Solex Architecture reserves the right to suspend performance or terminate this 
Agreement.  Solex Architecture asserts its right to payment for work completed if such Agreement is 
terminated by either party.  All subcontracted additional services agreed upon by the Owner and Solex 
Architecture are subject to reimbursement plus a fifteen percent service charge.   
  
Solex Architecture’s liability to the Owner for loss, injury or property damage caused by the 
performance of this or any supplementary agreement is limited to the amount of fees collected by Solex 
Architecture pursuant to this Agreement at the time that the asserted liability arose.  Furthermore, the 
Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Solex Architecture and all of its employees from and against 
any and all liability, loss, damages, claims and expenses arising out of or resulting from work undertaken 
on this project by the Owner, a contractor engaged by the Owner or a subcontractor engaged on the 
Owner’s behalf, or any company or individual employed by the Owner to work on this project, whether 
or not due in part to errors or omissions by Solex Architecture in the performance of either this 
Agreement or supplementary services related to the Agreement.   
 
The validity, effect and operation of this Agreement shall be determined according to the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, regardless of the applicable provisions of Virginia law with respect to 
conflicts of laws.  Any suit brought to enforce a party’s rights under this Agreement shall be filed in the 
state courts of the City of Danville, Virginia.  The Owner is responsible for all costs and attorneys’ fees 
incurred by Solex Architecture in any action to collect any funds owed to it by the Owner.   
 
This Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and writings.  It sets forth the entire agreement 
between the Owner and Solex Architecture, is the product of informed negotiations between the 
parties, and, to the extent necessary, will be interpreted as if drafted jointly by the parties.  If any clause, 
provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, place or 
circumstance, shall be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Solex Architecture and its consultants reserve the right to publish and publicize the Owner’s name and 
company name and any project renderings and/or photographs for the purposes of media relations, 
promotional and professional materials, and other communication strategies to internal and external 
audiences.  Solex Architecture shall be given reasonable access to the completed project to take such 
photography, and the Owner shall not unreasonably withhold the granting of such access.  Solex 
Architecture shall not release any of the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information, provided that 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

08
.3

0 
- 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

  (
21

81
 :

 P
u

b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

o
m

p
le

x 
/ A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 C
am

p
u

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Mr. Bowman 
August 30, 2018 
Page 5 

 

the Owner has previously advised Solex Architecture in writing of the confidential or proprietary nature 
of such information and the Owner’s desire that such information not be disclosed to third parties.  To 
the extent that the Owner prepares and/or distributes any promotional materials for this project, the 
Owner shall provide credit to Solex Architecture in such promotional materials. 
  
Solex Architecture reserves the right to all drawings, specifications and other materials produced, and 
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, such as copyrights, with respect to such 
drawings, specifications and other materials.  The Owner shall be granted by Solex Architecture a 
nonexclusive license to use the drawings, specifications and other materials produced for the sole 
purpose of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the project identified in this 
Agreement, assuming all payments are made pursuant to this Agreement.  In the event the Owner uses 
the drawings, specifications or other documents without proper license or permission from Solex 
Architecture as described above, including such use when full payment for work performed by Solex 
Architecture has not yet been provided by the Owner to Solex Architecture, the Owner releases Solex 
Architecture and its consultants from all claims arising from such use.  If the Owner terminates this 
Agreement for convenience, or if Solex Architecture terminates this Agreement due to nonpayment, the 
Owner shall pay a licensing fee for continued use of Solex Architecture’s drawings, specifications and 
other materials, with respect to the project identified in this Agreement, in the amount of 20% of the 
total compensation for design services, or the remaining balance of compensation outlined for design 
services, whichever is less. 
  
If directed to amend this Agreement, Solex Architecture may provide additional services or subcontract 
additional services, at which time a rate can be negotiated.  Solex Architecture may extend its services 
on an hourly basis at the prices included in the Standard Hourly Rate Schedule.  Solex Architecture has 
good working relationships with area engineering firms and can provide additional services if requested. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal.  If you have any questions or would like to discuss 
any items in this proposal, please feel free to contact us at (434) 688-0767. 
 
 
 
Sincerely yours,  
 
Solex Architecture, Inc. 

 
Jeffrey L. Bond, AIA, LEED AP BD+C 
Architect | Owner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

08
.3

0 
- 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

  (
21

81
 :

 P
u

b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

o
m

p
le

x 
/ A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 C
am

p
u

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Mr. Bowman 
August 30, 2018 
Page 6 

 

 
This proposal of Solex Architecture, Inc. is accepted: 
 
 
          
Printed Name 
 
 
          
Title 
 
 
           
Signature                        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

08
.3

0 
- 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

  (
21

81
 :

 P
u

b
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

o
m

p
le

x 
/ A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 C
am

p
u

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.D 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Vanguard Modular Building Systems - Ken Bowman 

 

Attachments: 2017 STOCK OFFICES - Sell Sheet web (PDF) 

2016 Flex.Office-4OFF 2pc (PDF) 

2016 Flex.Office-6OFF 3pc (PDF) 

2018 Flex Office Generic Specification (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

This request is for up to 3 modular office units to be located within the parking lot adjacent to 
the Planning Department and will house; the Planning Department, Tax Office, and Extension 
Office. 
Justification: The buildings that are currently occupied by the above departments poise 
significant health risks associated with mold exposure which can irritate the eyes, skin, nose, 
throat, and lungs. Additionally, the current buildings lack proper ventilation and are in a state of 
disrepair.  
Installation will not require demolition and only minor site preparation. Utility access is in close 
proximity to the proposed location. The modular office units will contain new air conditioning, 
new interior surfaces, new doors and windows, ADA conforming restrooms, handicapped 
accessibility and painting. The proposed units are commensurate with the use and size of the 
land and we expect minimal impact on activities adjacent to the site.  
 

Recommendation: 

The recommendation is to authorize the County Manager to negotiate and enter into a contract 
on behalf of the county to lease up to Three (3) modular units for up to Five (5) years. 

6.D

Packet Pg. 30



●  (877) 438-8627










Stock Office Building 
 



6.D.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7 

S
T

O
C

K
 O

F
F

IC
E

S
 -

 S
el

l S
h

ee
t 

w
eb

  (
21

74
 :

 V
an

g
u

ar
d

 M
o

d
u

la
r 

B
u

ild
in

g
 S

ys
te

m
s 

- 
K

en



●  (877) 438-8627




















S
T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 




















●  (877) 438-8627

Stock Office Building 
 



6.D.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7 

S
T

O
C

K
 O

F
F

IC
E

S
 -

 S
el

l S
h

ee
t 

w
eb

  (
21

74
 :

 V
an

g
u

ar
d

 M
o

d
u

la
r 

B
u

ild
in

g
 S

ys
te

m
s 

- 
K

en



Drawing:

4OFF

Scale:

Drawn By:

Drawing Date:

N.T.S.

VANGUARD

02-05-16

Vanguard Modular

Building Systems

Corporate Office

3 Great Valley Parkway, Suite 170

Malvern, PA  19355

www.vanguardmodular.com

FLEX PLEX

Project:

This document and all information contained herein,

are the proprietary data and trade secrets of

Vanguard Modular Building Systems (VMBS),

and Schiavi Leasing Corporation (Schiavi).

This document and the information contained herein

may not be reproduced, used, or disclosed in any

manner, or to any extent.  Written authorization by a

current employee of VMBS or Schiavi must be obtained

prior to use of this information, in any form, including

that which is represented by this complete page.

4 OFFICE

FLEX PLEX

6.D.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6 

F
le

x.
O

ff
ic

e-
4O

F
F

 2
p

c 
 (

21
74

 :
 V

an
g

u
ar

d
 M

o
d

u
la

r 
B

u
ild

in
g

 S
ys

te
m

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Drawing:

6OFF

Scale:

Drawn By:

Drawing Date:

N.T.S.

VANGUARD

02-05-16

Vanguard Modular

Building Systems

Corporate Office

3 Great Valley Parkway, Suite 170

Malvern, PA  19355

www.vanguardmodular.com

FLEX PLEX

Project:

This document and all information contained herein,

are the proprietary data and trade secrets of

Vanguard Modular Building Systems (VMBS),

and Schiavi Leasing Corporation (Schiavi).

This document and the information contained herein

may not be reproduced, used, or disclosed in any

manner, or to any extent.  Written authorization by a

current employee of VMBS or Schiavi must be obtained

prior to use of this information, in any form, including

that which is represented by this complete page.

6 OFFICE

FLEX PLEX

6.D.c

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6 

F
le

x.
O

ff
ic

e-
6O

F
F

 3
p

c 
 (

21
74

 :
 V

an
g

u
ar

d
 M

o
d

u
la

r 
B

u
ild

in
g

 S
ys

te
m

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Vanguard Modular Building Systems
Building Specifications

3/13/2018

PROJECT:
2018 FLEX PLEX OFFICE COMPLEX

BUILDING:
UNITS: Each floor 11'-8"X56'-0"
SQUARE FEET: Each floor 653 sq. ft.
CONSTRUCTION: VB
OCCUPANCY: B-BUSINESS; 1 OCCUPANT PER 100 SQ. FT.
STATE(S) CODED FOR: MULTIPLE
DESIGN WIND SPEED: 140 MPH
GROUND SNOW LOAD: 20 OR 40 PSF 

FRAME:

TYPE: OUTRIGGER W/12" BEAM AT 95.5" SPACING
AXLES AND TIRES: UNDERSLUNG AXLES / OF STANDARD TIRES
HITCHES: DETACHABLE
WEIGHTS FOR SHIPPING:

FLOOR:

BTM BOARD: NYLON INPREGNATED BOTTOM BOARD
INSULATION: R-30 KRAFT
JOISTS: 2x8 WOOD, DOUBLE RIM JOIST FULL PERIMETER
DECKING: 3/4" SINGLE LAYER PLYWOOD
FLOOR FINISH: 1/8" VINYL COMPOSITION TILE ARMSTRONG - COOL WHITE
FLOOR FINISH: RESTROOMS: ARMSTRONG CORLON - WHITE CLIFFS
FLOOR FINISH: CARPET BAR UNLESS HOLDBACKS ARE REQUESTED
BASE TRIM: COVE BASE 67-2 GRAY

EXTERIOR WALLS

WALLS: 2X6 WOOD W/ DOUBLE TOP PLATES
EXTERIOR WALL FINISH: 26 GA.RIB STEEL MOCHA TAN
SHEATHING: 7/16" OSB 100% COVERAGE
VAPOR BARRIER: HOUSE WRAP
INSULATION: R-19 KRAFT FACED
MANSARD: 26 GA. RIB STEEL - BLACK
EXTERIOR TRIM: 26 GA. RIB STEEL TRIM - BLACK
SKIRTING: OPTION PRICING: TO MATCH EXTERIOR WALL FINISH

INTERIOR WALLS

WALLS: 2X4 WOOD 
WALLS: 2X4 WOOD: DOUBLE AT THE MATE LINE 
PLUMBING WALL PLUMBING WALL BETWEEN RESTROOMS
PLENUM WALL HVAC PLENUM WALL
WALL HEIGHT: 8'-6" 
INSULATION: R-11 SOUND REDUCTION BATTS
INTERIOR FINISH: 5/8" VINYL COVERED GYPSUM TYPE "X" RUFF STUFF WHITE
INTERIOR FINISH: BATTENS AT SEAMS
INTERIOR FINISH: RESTROOMS AND JANITOR CLOSET - FRP OVER 5/8" GYPSUM

BACKER, FULL WALL HEIGHT - WHITE
INTERIOR FINISH: 4" VINYL BASE COVE - 67-2 GRAY

Page 1 of 3

6.D.d

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

F
le

x 
O

ff
ic

e 
G

en
er

ic
 S

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
  (

21
74

 :
 V

an
g

u
ar

d
 M

o
d

u
la

r 
B

u
ild

in
g

 S
ys

te
m

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Vanguard Modular Building Systems
Building Specifications

3/13/2018

ROOF:

TRUSS: TRANSVERSE, 1/4":12" PITCH, 24" O.C.
DECKING: 7/16" SHEATHING EPDM UNDERLAYMENT
MATE BEAM: 4L 24" 56' CLEARSPAN
OVERHANG: 2" SIDES, 6" ENDS
FINISHED CEILING: 8'-0"
CEILING FINISH: T-GRID / SUSPENDED: 2X2 ACOUSTICAL TILES
INSULATION: R-60 KRAFT
ROOFING: 45 MIL EPDM (BLACK)
MANSARD: 2" SIDES FLAT: BLACK
MANSARD: 6" ENDS FLAT: BLACK
ROOF ACCES.: 12" PEEL AND STICK
ROOF ACCES.: (2) HOLES BORED IN EACH MATEBEAM FOR CROSSOVERS

LOCATION NOTED ON PRINTS
MATELINE: PREFINISHED MATELINE FINISH BOARD

DOORS:

EXTERIOR. DOOR: 36X80 COMMERCIAL STEEL DOOR/STEEL JAMB  
EXT. DOOR LITE: 6"X30" OR 10"X10" WINDOW
EXT. DOOR HARDWARE: GRADE 2 LEVERSET
EXT. DOOR HARDWARE: GRADE 2 CLOSER
INTERIOR DOOR: 36X80 20 MIN. RATED FLUSH DOOR NO WINDOW
INTERIOR DOOR: BRONZE FRAME/ IMPERIAL OAK FINISH
INT. DOOR HARDWARE: GRADE 2 PRIVACY LOCKS: RESTROOMS
INT. DOOR HARDWARE: GRADE 2 PASSAGE LOCKS: OFFICES, JANITOR ROOM
INT. DOOR HARDWARE: FLOOR MOUNTED DOOR STOPS

WINDOWS:

EXTERIOR WINDOWS:
WINDOW SIZE 24X54 VERTICAL SLIDER BRONZE FRAME, BLACK TRIM
WINDOW GLAZING: LOW E, TINTED GLASS
WINDOW: VINYL MINI-BLINDS

ELECTRICAL:

SERVICE: 120/240 V SINGLE-PHASE SERVICE
LOADCENTER: 125A OR 150A NEMA-3 OUTDOOR LOAD CENTERS
WIRING: 12-2 ROMEX 
WIRING: MC CABLE ABOVE T-GRID CEILING
INTERIOR LIGHTS: TUBE FLUORESCENT (LAY-IN GRID)
EMERGENCY LIGHTS: DUAL HEAD EMERGENCY LIGHT / EXIT SIGNS
REMOTE HEADS: DUAL EXTERIOR REMOTE HEADS 
EXTERIOR LIGHTS: 60 WATT PHOTO CELL PORCH LIGHT OR EQUAL LED
RECEPTS: 110 VOLT RECEPTACLES
RECEPTS: GFI RECEPTACLES AS REQUIRED
RECEPTS: EXTERIOR GFI WITH WEATHER PROOF COVER - 1 PER BOX
RECEPTS: HEAT TAPE RECEPT (GFI PROTECTED) 1 PER WET AREA
RECEPTS: DEDICATED OUTLET IN JANITOR CLOSET
EMPTY J-BOX: W/ 1/2" CONDUIT STUBBED UP ABOVE T-GRID 
EXHAUST FANS: 100 CFM FAN WITH 60 WATT LIGHT  RESTROOMS
SWITCHES: OCCUPANCY SENSORS
CONDUIT STUB OUT: 2" CONDUIT STUB WITH CAPS IN JANITOR CLOSET

Page 2 of 3

6.D.d

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

F
le

x 
O

ff
ic

e 
G

en
er

ic
 S

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
  (

21
74

 :
 V

an
g

u
ar

d
 M

o
d

u
la

r 
B

u
ild

in
g

 S
ys

te
m

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



Vanguard Modular Building Systems
Building Specifications

3/13/2018

PLUMBING:

PLUMBING: CPVC SUPPLY AND PVC DWV
TOILETS: INDIVIDUAL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE RESTROOMS

INCLUDING GRAB BARS, TOILET PAPER HOLDER
AND MIRROR

SINKS: WALL MOUNTED LAVATORY W/METAL FIXTURES
AND HANDICAP SINK PROTECTION

SERVICE SINK: 24"X24" MOUNTED ON LEGS WITH METAL FAUCET
HOSE BIBB: PER CODE REQUIREMENT
WATER HEATER: 6 GALLON TANK
BAR SINK: BAR SINK, METAL FIXTURES
CABINETS: 2'-6" APRON BASE, PLUS 18" BASE CAB. FOR 4 LFT TOTAL 
CABINETS: 4 LFT OVERHEAD
COUNTERTOP: 4 LFT COUNTER TOP WITH BACKSPLASH AND ROLLED 

FRONT EDGE - GRAY

H.V.A.C.

HVAC: 3T  WALL HUNG W/10-15 KW HEATSTRIP
SUPPLY AIR DUCTWORK: R-6 DUCTBOARD
SUPPLY AIR GRILL: 2'X2' FIXED BLADE W/ADJUSTABLE DAMPER
RETURN AIR DUCTWORK: R-6 DUCTBOARD
RETURN AIR GRILL: 2'X2' FIXED BLADE
THERMOSTAT: 7 DAY PROGRAMMABLE

SHIP LOOSE:
FLOOR FINISH: LFT. CARPET BAR
ROOF ACCES.: 12" PEEL AND STICK
MATE LINE FINISH: MATE LINE FINISH BOARD

Page 3 of 3

6.D.d

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

F
le

x 
O

ff
ic

e 
G

en
er

ic
 S

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
  (

21
74

 :
 V

an
g

u
ar

d
 M

o
d

u
la

r 
B

u
ild

in
g

 S
ys

te
m

s 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.1 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Donna Stewart, Visitor Center Director 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority - Vice Chairman Tom 

White 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Vice Chairman Tom White be reappointed to the Tourism 

Development Authority Board for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approve reappointment. 

7.1

Packet Pg. 38



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.1 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Amy Barnett, Planning Clerk 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Special Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2018 

 

Attachments: BOC_SP_08272018_Minutes (PDF) 

 

8.1

Packet Pg. 39



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
BOC - Special Meeting – August 27, 2018 

  

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
BOC - Special Meeting 

August 27, 2018, 8:30 AM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

A special meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on August 
27, 2018 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina. The following were 
present: 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
Board Members Present 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Garry Meiggs Commissioner Present 8:30 AM 

Clayton Riggs Chairman Commissioner Absent  

Tom White Vice Chairman Commissioner Present 8:30 AM 

Randy Krainiak Commissioner Present 8:30 AM 

Ross Munro Commissioner Present 8:30 AM 

 
Staff Present: 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Ken Bowman County Manager Present 8:30 AM 

Stephanie Humphries Finance Officer Present 8:30 AM 

David Credle Public Works Director Present 8:30 AM 

Amy Barnett Assistant Clerk to the Board Present 8:30 AM 

 
Also Present List 

Attendee Name Company Purpose of Attendance 

Sean Robey Eastern Carolina Engineering & 
Construction Inc. 

Speak on Liner 
Replacement 

Chuck Harrell Clearfield MNG Speak on Liner 
Replacement 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting – August 27, 2018 

 

Page 2 of 7 

CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Agenda as Presented 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: Meiggs, White, Krainiak, Munro 

ABSENT: Riggs 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 
Lagoon Liner Replacement, Contract, & Budget Amendment 
 
County Manager Ken Bowman asked Public Works Director David Credle to lead the 
discussion of this agenda item. 
 
David Credle, Public Works Director  In January 2018 a tear in the lagoon liner of the waste water treatment plant was 

discovered. 
o Tear was 15-20 feet long 
o Thought was to patch it and move on 
o Day after discovery, tear expanded to 3 times its original size  State of NC was called 
o State inspectors came and investigated 
o A notice of violation was issued 
o Public Works was told that the liner must be repaired or replaced  Contacted Joe Enloff, who is experienced with such liner repair 
o Discussed options for repair 

 Repair one side of liner  Liner specialist looked at it and said it was a 10 year liner 
whose lifespan was up 

o Liner is brittle, and will continue to deteriorate, 
ultimately will completely fail 

 Place new liner on top of old 
 Repair part of liner 
 All options except replacing entire liner do not address subgrade 

soils under the liner, and do not include any warranty for the money 
spent.  Introduced Sean Robey, who spoke regarding replacement. 

 
  

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting – August 27, 2018 

 

Page 3 of 7 

Sean Robey, Eastern Carolina Engineering & Construction Inc.  Chuck Harrell of Clearfield MNG is here with Mr. Robey  Recall from previous meeting on same subject, a proposal from Clearfield, which 
was voted on several weeks ago 

o Was based on pumping all water out of lagoon and patching liner 
o Question was what would be cost to replace entire liner  Clearfield MNG is not licensed contractor in state of NC, so David Credle and 

Joe Enloff prepared a bid package and put it out for bid, however no bids were 
received.  Eastern Carolina Engineering & Construction was approached by Public Works 
Director to see if they would be able to work with Clearfield MNG to provide NC 
licensure to the project.  Not much progress pumping water out of lagoon due to over 17 inches of rain 
during month of July 2018.  Sprayfield area was too wet and there was too much 
water in the lagoon.  Needed to come up with a way to hold back the water 

o Method called Aqua Damming 
 8 foot tall flexible tubes that can be filled full of water, braced, and 

then pump out the water on the side leaving dry ground so old liner 
can be removed and excavate the necessary tow trenches to 
secure the new liner in place.  Ability to pump out water and replace liner is difference between prior proposal 

and what is before board now. 
 
County Manager Ken Bowman asked Mr. Robey to speak about the thickness of and 
warranty for the liner. 
 
Mr. Robey gave the following details:  Prior liner was a 45 mil RPP (Reinforced Poly Propylene) liner.  Such liners are 

not used much anymore.  New liner is a 60 mil HDPE (High Density Polyethylene) liner 
o Heat fusible, can be welded back together if anything happened to it. 
o Easier to repair 
o 20 year warranty 

 
Vice Chairman Tom White asked if there were conditions on the warranty. 
 
Chuck Harrell of Clearfield MNG answered:  20 year warranty is on product itself 

o If parts begin to show degradation or unusual wear, will replace entire liner 
free of cost  Warranty does not cover: 

o Damage by acts of nature 
o Damage by wildlife 
o Damage caused by equipment / actions of the owner  

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting – August 27, 2018 

 

Page 4 of 7 

Mr. Harrell added that it would have to be a pretty severe weather event to tear a 60 mil 
liner. 
 
Commissioner Ross Munro asked if there was any way to mitigate potential damage 
that could be caused by weather events such as ice / snow / freezing weather. 
 
Mr. Harrell answered saying that Camden has seen several ice / freeze events during 
the lifespan of the current liner which was 40 mil, and it lasted this long, a 60 mil liner 
should have no problems withstanding the same. 
 
Commissioner Munro then asked how soon work could commence on this if it were 
approved.  Mr. Harrell stated it is a 7 week process and could begin in October. 
 
Vice Chairman Tom White asked David Credle, Public Works Director, if he had 
checked with other counties with regards to this kind of project. 
 
Mr. Credle answered saying:  There are plenty of companies that can put liners in.  Camden's problem is complex, so much so that one company to do everything is 

the issue 
o Water treated from wastewater plant has to have somewhere to go 
o Dirt / soil under liner needs attention 
o Liner needs replacing 

 
Commissioner White clarified his question, that he wanted to know about experiences 
other counties / places have had with this company.  Mr. Credle stated that Clearfield 
comes highly recommended. 
 
Commissioner Randy Krainiak asked about available colors for the liner.  Mr. Harrell 
responded that the white is the same exact material as the black and that the only 
difference is that the lighter colors tend not to get as hot as the darker colors.  Darker 
colors absorb heat during the day and expand and shrink when they heat and cool, 
which can give the effect of looking wrinkled, but flatten back out at night when they cool 
down.  Lighter colors reflect heat and do not get as hot.  That said, the black is what is 
being recommended because it does not reflect and will not create a blinding effect on 
anyone working in the area. 
 
Vice Chairman Tom White asked if any of the commissioners had any further questions 
for Mr. Robey or Mr. Harrell about the liner.  Hearing none, he moved on to the contract. 
 
Commissioner Garry Meiggs asked if the price quoted was the best price or if there was 
room for negotiation. 
  

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting – August 27, 2018 

 

Page 5 of 7 

Mr. Robey replied:  Contract is a time & materials type of contract  Believe amount is conservative  There are a lot of unit prices, but feel the quantities are such that the actual 
project should be less than the projected amount  Contract includes description of how each of the pay items for each of the 
quantities are measured and time lapses  Some of the rental items included in contract are weather sensitive 

 
Commissioner Meiggs asked if the unit price per hour rate on rental equipment is being 
charged if the equipment is there but not in use.  Mr. Harrell responded that if it is on 
site, the rental amount is charged.  He added that if adverse weather occurs and crews 
can not work, labor is not charged, but rental is. 
 
Mr. Harrell added that until they get into the project, the actual condition of the subgrade 
under the existing liner is not known.  On paper are assumptions and a good estimate.  
Mr. Robey added that there are areas under the current liner that "trampoline" due to no 
soil underneath, and there are a lot of variables as to conditions at the site. 
 
Commissioner Krainiak asked when work would be finished on it were it approved.  Mr. 
Harrell stated work could begin early October and could be completed as early as 
Thanksgiving. 
 
County Manager Ken Bowman stated that where the liner is "trampolining", the 
subgrade soils are going to be built back up to eliminate that effect, and that all soil 
areas needing fill will be filled prior to installation of the new liner. 
 
Mr. Harrell added that there will be a letter provided from the liner company saying they 
approve the subgrade before they install the new liner. 
 
Commissioner Meiggs asked what the liner company checks.  Mr. Robey stated they 
will check to make sure the subgrade is stable and graded correctly.  Mr. Robey added 
that there was a conversation about compaction numbers and with the lagoon's bank 
and the unknown ability about how well it can be dried out, it was asked that in lieu of 
doing an actual test for compaction that the liner manufacturers letter of approval be 
accepted for the subgrade.  Mr. Harrell added that the crew will walk the subgrade to 
look for things that could damage the new liner prior to its installation. 
 
County Manager Ken Bowman added the following:  Lagoon is primary outfall source of waste water treatment plant  Good investment to replace liner now  Serves a core function and is a justified expense.  Is a need, not a want.  Current liner is on borrowed time due to tears / degradation  Current liner has been repaired as much as it can be, it needs to be replaced. 
  

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting – August 27, 2018 

 

Page 6 of 7 

Vice Chairman Tom White stated the options for considering the liner replacement, 
contract, and associated budget amendment are:  Approve as is  Approve subject to review by County Attorney  Table and come back to it after County Attorney has reviewed 
 
Commissioner Garry Meiggs made the following motion: 
 

Motion to Approve Contract Subject to Review by County Attorney 

(contract is attached at end of these minutes) 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: Meiggs, White, Krainiak, Munro 

ABSENT: Riggs 

 
Vice Chairman Tom White called for a motion to consider the budget amendment. 
 
Commissioner Ross Munro made the following motion: 
 

Motion to Approve Budget Amendment 2018-19-BA005 

(copy of budget amendment is attached at end of these minutes) 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: Meiggs, White, Krainiak, Munro 

ABSENT: Riggs 

  

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting – August 27, 2018 

 

Page 7 of 7 

ADJOURN 

 
Vice Chairman Tom White adjourned the meeting at 9:00 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 Vice Chairman Commissioner Tom White 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Amy Barnett, Planning Clerk 
Assistant Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 of 9 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between Camden County (“Owner”) and 

Eastern Carolina Construction, Inc. (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 

Work is generally described as follows: 

The scope of work for this project will include storage irrigation lagoon membrane liner replacement and 

renovation at the Water Treatment Facilities, Camden Village Core Project, South Mills Township, 

Camden County, NC. 

 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is 

generally described as follows: 

Lagoon Membrane Replacement Project 

South Mills Reclaimed Water Storage Lagoon 

 

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The Project was originally designed by Hobbs Upchurch as reflected in plans referenced in this 

agreement.  Technical specifications have been designed by Anlauf Engineering, PLLC 

(Engineer) 4721 W. Eckner Street, Kitty Hawk, NC  27949, which is to act as Owner’s 

representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned 

to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in 

accordance with the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness for 

final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. Dates for 

Substantial Completion and Final Payment  

B. The Work will be is expected to begin on or around October 1, 2018 and substantially complete 

within seven weeks pending unforeseen circumstances.  Both parties acknowledge that this is a 

time and materials contract. 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 of 9 

 

 

4.02 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above 

and that Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified 

in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12 of 

the General Conditions. While the actual contract time is uncertain, as this is a time and 

materials unit price contract, it should be understood between the Contractor and Owner that the 

Contractor shall remain on-site throughout the project once the project is commenced.  Unless 

prior agreed to between the Contractor and Owner, the Contractor shall remain fully mobilized 

with equipment and manpower throughout the duration of the project.  If the Contractor de-

mobilizes from the job for a period more than two (2) weeks prior to Substantial Completion of 

the Work, then the Contractor is subject to monetary damages due to the delay in completion of 

the Work.  Damages shall be $500.00 per calendar day until the Contractor resumes work. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents an amount in current funds equal to the sum of the amounts determined pursuant to 

Paragraphs 5.01.A, 5.01.B below: 

 CONTRACT TOTAL:  UNIT PRICES  

 $ 489,044 dollars 00 cents (Four hundred eighty-nine thousand, forty four dollars and zero cents) 

A. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for each 

separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the actual quantity of that item: 

Item 
Number 

Description Qty Unit Unit Price Extended Price 

100 Equipment and Material Mobilization 
And Demobilization 

1 LS $   25,870.00 $     25,870.00 

101 Supply Labor including Site 
Supervision, Sr. Heavy Equipment 
Operator, and Heavy Equipment 
Operator I.  
 

35 Day $     2,280.00 $     79,800.00 

102 Supply Equipment including Compact 
Wheel Loader with Forks, CAT 318 
Hydraulic Excavator, CAT 305 
Hydraulic Excavator, 4”x6” Diesel 
Pump, 2” Submersible Pump, Hoses, 
Project Vehicles, Enclosed Cargo 
Trailer, Fuel and Miscellaneous Tools  
 

7 Wks $     7,260.00 $    50,820.00 

103 Supply 7 each 8’x18’x100’ Cofferdam 
(HIS Aquabarrier or Equivalent) 
 
 
 

6 Wks $    17,950.00        $   107,700.00 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

Item 
Number 

Description Qty Unit Unit Price    Extended Price 

104 Supply & Deliver Common Fill 1000 CY $     19.00    $   19,000.00 

105 Construction Debris Disposal 50 Ton $     74.00    $     3,700.00 
 

106 
 

Construction Debris Transportation, 
Roll-off  
 

5 Load $    340.00      $     1,700.00 

107 Non-Hazardous Mud Disposal 
(1700’x5’x0.5’=157 CY) 
 

240 Tons $     29.00      $     6,960.00 

108 Non-Hazardous Mud Transportation, 
Roll-off 
 

20 Load $    285.00      $     5,700.00 

109 Liner Crew Labor & Equipment 
Mobilization/ Demobilization 
 

4 LS $   7,500.00      $   30,000.00 

110 Supply and Install 60 Mil HDPE Liner 1 LS $141,000.00      $  141,000.00 

111   Concrete Attachment & Pipe Boots 1 LS $   2,850.00    $      2,850.00 

112   Supply and Deliver Bentonite Hole 
Plug (50lb Bag) 
 

360 Bags $     20.00    $      7,200.00 

113 Supply and Deliver Contractor Seed 
Mix, Starter Fertilizer, Single New 
Straw Erosion Control Matting 
 

1 LS $   5,700.00    $      5,700.00 

114 Supply NCDOT ABC  Aggregate 24 Ton $    31.00    $         744.00 

115 Deliver NCDOT ABC Aggregate 2 Load $   150.00    $         300.00 

  
Estimated Project Total: 

  
           

  
   $     489,044.00 

 

The Bid prices for Unit Price Work set forth as of the Effective Date of the Agreement are based on 

estimated quantities.  As provided in Paragraph 11.03 of the General Conditions, estimated quantities 

are not guaranteed, and determinations of actual quantities and classifications are to be made by 

Engineer as provided in Paragraph 9.07 of the General Conditions. 

 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of the General 

Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General 

Conditions. 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 

Contractor’s Applications for Payment each month during performance of the Work as 

provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below. All such payments will be measured by the schedule of 

values established as provided in Paragraph 2.07.A of the General Conditions (and in the case 

of Unit Price Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no 

schedule of values, as provided in the General Requirements. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the 

percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously 

made and less such amounts as Engineer may determine or Owner may withhold, including 

but not limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with Paragraph 14.02 of the General 

Conditions. 

a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has been 

50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of 

the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the character 

and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, there will be no 

additional retainage; and 

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with the 

balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments 

to Contractor to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts as Engineer shall 

determine in accordance with Paragraph 14.02.B.5 of the General Conditions and less 200 

percent of Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on 

the tentative list of items to be completed or corrected attached to the certificate of Substantial 

Completion.  

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the 

General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by 

Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 14.07. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 All moneys not paid when due as provided in Article 14 of the General Conditions shall bear 

interest at the rate of 0 percent per annum. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement, Contractor makes the following 

representations: 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other related 

data identified in the Bidding Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, 

and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local Laws and 

Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 

conditions at or contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 

existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities), if any, that 

have been identified in Paragraph SC-4.02 of the Supplementary Conditions as containing 

reliable "technical data”. 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor; information commonly known 

to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained 

from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings 

identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, 

observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the 

means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by 

Contractor, including any specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 

construction expressly required by the Contract Documents; and (3) Contractor’s safety 

precautions and programs.   

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in Paragraph 8.01.E above, Contractor 

does not consider that further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data 

are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, 

and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the 

Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 

discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 

resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all 

terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 

1. This Agreement (pages 1 to 9, inclusive). 

2. Performance bond. 

3. Payment bond. 

4. General Conditions (pages 1 to 62, inclusive). 

5. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual bearing the title 

“Technical Specifications for The Replacement and Renovation Of the South Mills 

Reclaimed Water Irrigation Storage Lagoon Liner” dated June 28, 2018, by Anlauf 

Engineering, PLLC.  

6. Drawings consisting of:  

A. Plan sheet entitled “Wastewater Treatment Facilities, Camden Village Core 

Project, South Mills Township, Camden County, North Carolina, Contract 

#2 WWTP, 59-day Storage Pond” as prepared by Hobbs, Upchurch & 

Associates, P.A., sealed by James H. Bowen, PE, plan sheet number CII.2C, 

G-2, dated February 2006 with a record drawing stamp date of 1/24/2008. 

B. Plan sheet entitled “Wastewater Treatment Facilities, Camden Village Core 

Project, South Mills Township, Camden County, North Carolina, Contract 

#2 WWTP, 59-day Storage Lagoon Details” as prepared by Hobbs, 

Upchurch & Associates, P.A., sealed by James H. Bowen, PE, plan sheet 

number CII.2C, G-3, dated February 2006 with a record drawing stamp date 

of 1/24/2008. 

C. Plan sheet entitled “Wastewater Treatment Facilities, Camden Village Core 

Project, South Mills Township, Camden County, North Carolina, Contract #2 

WWTP, Storage Lagoon Details” as prepared by Hobbs, Upchurch & 

Associates, P.A., sealed by James H. Bowen, PE, plan sheet number CII.2C, G-

4, dated February 2006 with a record drawing stamp date of 1/24/2008. 

7. Addenda (N/A) 

8. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Price and Payment Procedures (attached). 

9. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 

Agreement and are not attached hereto: 

a.  Notice to Proceed. 

b.  Work Change Directives. 

c.  Change Orders. 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 

d.  Pre-Construction Meeting Minutes. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly 

noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 

Paragraph 3.04 of the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the 

Supplementary Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding 

on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, 

specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may 

not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may 

be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 

assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility 

under the Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 

representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 

representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the 

Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any 

Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be 

valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be 

reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable 

provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

 

 

 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 

practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 

10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value 

likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract 

execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence 

the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of Owner, (b) to 

establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner 

of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or 

without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at artificial, 

non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or 

their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution 

of the Contract. 

 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



 

         

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  Counterparts have been 

delivered to Owner and Contractor. All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or have been 

identified by Owner and Contractor or on their behalf. 

 

This Agreement will be effective on                                (which is the Effective Date of the Agreement). 

  

 

 

   

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR 

Camden County  Eastern Carolina Construction, Inc. 

By:        By:        

Title:        Title:       

  

 (If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, 

or a joint venture, attach evidence of authority 

to sign.) 

Attest:        Attest:       

Title:        Title:       

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

       Eastern Carolina Construction, Inc. 

       PO Box 128 

       Camden, North Carolina  27921 

  License No.: 57634 

 

 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the local government fiscal control act. 

 

_____________________________________________ 

      FINANCE OFFICER 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



Lagoon Membrane Replacement Project  
South Mills Reclaimed Water Storage Lagoon 

 
  Price and Payment Procedures 
   

PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES 
 

PART 1 GENERAL 

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Applications for payment. 

B. Change procedures. 

C. Unit prices. 
 

1.2 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT 

A. Submit three copies of each application on Contractor’s Application for Payment Form. 

Content and Format: Utilize Schedule of Values for listing items in Application for 
Payment. 

B. Payment Period: Submit at intervals stipulated in the Agreement. 

C. Submit lien waivers. 
1. Substantiating Data: When Engineer requires substantiating information, submit 

data justifying dollar amounts in question.  

1.3 CHANGE PROCEDURES 
 

A. The Engineer may issue a Notice of Change including a detailed description of proposed 
change with supplementary or revised Drawings and specifications, a change in Contract 
Time for executing the change. Contractor will prepare and submit estimate in the agreed 
upon number of days.   

B. Unit Price Change Order: For contract unit prices and quantities, the Change Order will 
be executed on fixed unit price basis. For unit costs or quantities of units of work, which 
are not pre-determined, contractor will provide unit price items to be approved by 
Engineer and submitted to the Owner for signature on the Change Order form.  

C. Execution of Change Orders: Engineer will issue Change Orders for signatures of parties 
as provided in Conditions of the Contract. 

D. Correlation Of Contractor Submittals: 
1. Promptly revise Schedule of Values and Application for Payment forms to record 

each authorized Change Order as separate line item and adjust Contract Sum/Price. 
 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



Lagoon Membrane Replacement Project  
South Mills Reclaimed Water Storage Lagoon 

 
  Price and Payment Procedures 
   

1.4 UNIT PRICES 
 
The contract for this project, Lagoon Membrane Replacement Project – South Mills Reclaimed 

Water Storage Lagoon, will be a unit price contract.  Payment for the unit price contract shall include all 
materials, equipment, supplies, labor and all else required and or implied by the Contract Documents, 
Contract Drawings, and Contract Specifications.  If a discrepancy is found to exist between the Contract 
Specification and this section, the instructions in this section shall apply.  Items and a description of each 
are identified as follows: 
 
100  MOBILIZATION/DEMOLITION 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid lump sum.  Payment shall include all labor, materials and 
equipment necessary for the project.  This item shall be paid at 75% value the first month and 25% the 
second month. 
 
 
101  PROJECT LABOR  
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per day at the price per day reflected in the agreement.  
The daily labor rates include all payroll taxes and associated workers’ compensation and general liability 

insurance required for the positions.   
 
 
102  PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per week of construction.  This payment item covers all of 
the necessary heavy equipment, pumps/hoses, fuel, and miscellaneous tools for the project. In the event 
work extends into a partial week, the weekly charge will be spread over the first three days and billed 
daily.  Once three days have been accumulated the charge is for the entire week. 
 
103   COFFERDAM RENTAL 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per week of construction.  This item includes rental of 
seven (7) 8’x8’x100’ cofferdams (HIS Aquabarrier brand or equivalent). There is a four week minimum 

rental of the cofferdam equipment to be charged.  There are no partial weeks for this item.  Once rental 
extends to the Monday of the next week, the entire rental for the week is charged. 
 
104  SUPPLY AND DELIVER COMMON FILL 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per cubic yard of off-site material furnished to the site by 
the Contractor. The quantity of borrow material will be determined as follows: 12 CY per tandem truck, 
15 CY per triaxle truck and 18 CY per quad axle truck. 
 
The Contractor shall provide tickets for each load delivered. Tickets shall have the date, time of delivery 
to site, job name, truck number or identification and number of cubic yards.  
 
 
 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



Lagoon Membrane Replacement Project  
South Mills Reclaimed Water Storage Lagoon 

 
  Price and Payment Procedures 
   

  
105  CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS DISPOSAL 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per ton of construction material debris to be disposed of 
by the Contractor. The quantity of construction material debris will be determined by weigh tickets from 
the receiving facility. 
 
 
106  CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS TRANSPORTATION ROLL-OFF 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per load of construction material debris to be disposed of 
by the Contractor. The quantity for this pay item will be the actual number of loads transported for 
disposal as verified by weigh tickets. 
 
 
107  NON-HAZARDOUS MUD DISPOSAL 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per ton of non-hazardous mud to be disposed of by the 
Contractor. The quantity of non-hazardous mud will be determined by weigh tickets from the receiving 
facility or by agreed upon volume calculation. 
 
108  NON-HAZARDOUS MUD TRANSPORTATION ROLL-OFF 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per load of non-hazardous mud to be disposed of by the 
Contractor. The quantity for this pay item will be the actual number of loads transported for disposal as 
verified by weigh tickets or Contractor records. 
 
109  LINER INSTALLATION MOBILIZATION/DEMOBILIZATION 
  
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per mobilization/demobilization of the liner installation 
sub-contractor.  This item includes mobilization and demobilization of labor and equipment.  There is a 
one week lead time for mobilization of the liner crew.   
 
110  60 MIL HDPE LINER 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per lump sum.  This item includes purchase and 
installation of the liner.  The liner is a 60 mil HDPE liner which includes a 20 year warranty. 
 
111  CONCRETE ATTACHMENT AND PIPE BOOTS 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per lump sum.  This item includes installation of the liner 
attachment to existing concrete structures and existing pipes. 
 
112  BENTONITE HOLE PLUG 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per bag.  Material used for plug shall be Bentonite as 
approved by the Engineer and the Owner.  This item shall include materials, labor and equipment 
necessary for installation. 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



Lagoon Membrane Replacement Project  
South Mills Reclaimed Water Storage Lagoon 

 
  Price and Payment Procedures 
   

 
 
113  EROSION CONTROL  
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per lump sum.  Payment shall include labor, material, 
installation, and required maintenance of all erosion control devices shown on the Contract Drawings and 
any additional measures necessary to properly manage erosion and sedimentation control throughout the 
Contract time.  
  
 
114 SUPPLY NCDOT ABC AGGREGATE 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per ton.  ABC Aggregate shall be utilized to repair 
existing driveways as necessary.  Quantity will be determined by weigh tickets from the supplying quarry. 
 
115  DELIVER NCDOT ABC AGGREGATE 
 
This item shall be paid for by the unit price bid per load of ABC aggregate to be delivered by the 
Contractor. The quantity for this pay item will be the actual number of loads transported for supplying 
ABC aggregate as verified by weigh tickets. 
 
 
 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



2018-19-BA005 
CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 
that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2019. 
 
Section 1.  To amend the General & Water/Sewer Projects Fund as follows: 
 
 AMOUNT 
ACCT NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF ACCT INCREASE DECREASE 
 
 
Revenues 
10399400-439900 Fund Balance $490,000 
29330760-434511 County Contribution $490,000 
 
Expenses 
106900-539730 South Camden Water & Sewer  $490,000 
297500-574421 Wastewater Lagoon $490,000 
 
 
This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds to upgrade Wastewater Lagoon Liner. 
 
 
This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 
 
Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 
 
 
Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the 
Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  
Adopted this 27th day of August, 2018. 
 
 
 
    
Amy Barnett, Asst. Clerk to the Board  Tom White, Vice Chairman 
Camden County Board of Commissioners Camden County Board of Commissioners 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

_S
P

_0
82

72
01

8_
M

in
u

te
s 

 (
21

72
 :

 B
O

C
 S

p
ec

ia
l M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

7,
 2

01
8)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.2 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Minutes - September 10, 2018 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_091018 (DOCX) 

 

8.2

Packet Pg. 61



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 

September 10, 2018 2 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 3 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 4 

Camden, North Carolina 5 

 6 

MINUTES 7 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on September 10, 8 

2018 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  9 

 10 

WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER  11 

The meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Tom White at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: 12 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs and Randy Krainiak.  Chairman Clayton Riggs and Commissioner 13 

Ross Munro were absent due to work obligations. 14 

 15 

Staff Present: Manager Ken Bowman, Clerk to the Board Karen Davis, County Attorney John 16 

Morrison, Permit Officer Dave Parks, Public Works Director David Credle.   17 

 18 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 19 

Pastor Kevin Buzzard gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance.   20 

 21 

ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS         22 

 23 

 Pastor Bill Blake from McBride United Methodist Church in South Mills addressed the 24 

Board.  He introduced a new program, Harmony Café of the Albemarle, for dementia 25 

patients and caregivers that McBride United Methodist Church is launching.   26 

 Ms. Vickie Stafford of South Mills addressed the Board.  She spoke in support of 27 

Harmony Café and of her experience of having a family member with dementia. She 28 

requested any assistance that the county might provide for this new program. 29 

 Ms. Joanne Inman of South Mills addressed the Board.  She also spoke in support of 30 

Harmony Café and of her experience of having a family member with dementia and the 31 

difficulty of finding available assistance and resources as a primary caregiver. 32 

 Mr. Jerry Bonilla of South Mills addressed the Board.  Mr. Bonilla is a volunteer in the 33 

Camden County Public Schools, particularly in the middle and high schools.  He 34 

explained to the Board the difficulty of finding a place for the sports teams for which he 35 

volunteers to practice and play, particularly the school gymnasiums.  It is his request that 36 

the County assist in this matter.  Mr. Bonilla also spoke in support of the new program 37 

being launched by McBride United Methodist Church, Harmony Café of the Albemarle. 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



2 

 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT    42 

 43 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 44 

 45 

ITEM 3. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        46 

 47 

The agenda was amended to add as New Business, Item 6.C. a matter concerning Station 12 48 

Firetruck Housing. 49 

 50 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 51 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 52 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 53 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 54 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 55 

  56 

ITEM 4. PRESENTATIONS          57 

 58 

1. Area Agency on Aging Region R Advisory Council – Gwen Wescott 59 

 60 

Mrs. Gwen Wescott gave a report on recent and upcoming events for seniors.   61 

 Scam Alert Workshops 62 

 Senior Picnic – October 11, 2018, Fun Junktion in Elizabeth City 63 

 Senior Dinner – October 18, 2018, Tyrrell County 4-H Conference Center 64 

 Mrs. Wescott stressed the importance of being familiar with the information in the 65 

Regional Aging Services Plan 2016-2020 as well as other events and meetings that 66 

take place. 67 

 68 

2. Albemarle Hopeline, Inc. – Dwight Decoskey, Executive Director and CEO of Albemarle 69 

Hopeline, Inc.   70 

 71 

Mr. Decoskey highlighted the various services that Albemarle Hopeline providers and 72 

included the following: 73 

 Shelter for victims of domestic abuse/sexual assault 74 

 Albemarle Hopeline thrift store 75 

 Direct Services which include: 76 

 In-house, on-site counseling services 77 

 Social Workers 78 

 Substance abuse counseling 79 

 Court advocacy 80 

 Power to Improve Program 81 

 Prevention 82 

 Education 83 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



3 

 

 Crisis Line 84 

 Looking Forward – Hopeline 2.0 85 

 Including more males in the discussion of domestic violence 86 

 Providing on-the-job training programs through the thrift store 87 

 88 

3. Craig Patterson – Social Services Department Update 89 

 90 

 91 
 92 

 93 

 94 

 95 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



4 

 

 96 
 97 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 98 

Vice Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and opened the 99 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 100 

 101 

Public Comments – None 102 

 103 

 104 
 105 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 106 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 107 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 108 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 109 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 110 

  111 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



5 

 

New Business 112 

 113 

A. Monthly Report 114 

 115 

 116 
 117 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 118 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 119 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 120 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 121 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 122 

  123 

 124 

Consent Agenda 125 

 126 

1. Resolution Approving Local Water Supply Plan 127 

 128 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



6 

 

 129 
2. Resolution Approving Water Shortage Response Plan 130 

 131 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



7 

 

Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 132 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 133 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 134 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 135 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 136 

  137 

Motion to adjourn the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 138 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 139 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 140 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 141 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 142 

  143 

Vice Chairman Tom White reconvened the Camden County Board of Commissioners. 144 

 145 

ITEM 5. PUBLIC HEARING          146 

 147 

A. Public Hearing – Ordinance 2018-07-02; Rezoning Application (UDO 2018-06-19) 148 

 149 

Motion to go into Public Hearing on Ordinance 2018-07-02; Rezoning Application (UDO 150 

2018-06-19). 151 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 152 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 153 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 154 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 155 

  156 

Permit Officer Dave Parks presented the following Staff Report: 157 

 158 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



8 

 

 159 
 160 

 161 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



9 

 

 162 
 163 

 164 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



10 

 

 165 

 166 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



11 

 

 167 
 168 

 169 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



12 

 

 170 

 171 
 172 

 173 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



13 

 

 174 
 175 

 176 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



14 

 

 177 
 178 

 179 

 180 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



15 

 

 181 
 182 

 183 

 184 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



16 

 

 185 

 186 

 187 
 188 

 189 

 190 

 191 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



17 

 

 192 

 193 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



18 

 

Vice Chairman White opened the floor for public comment.   194 

 195 

There being no public comments Vice Chairman called for a motion to close the public hearing. 196 

 197 

Motion to close the public hearing. 198 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 199 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 200 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 201 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 202 

  203 

Motion to add Ordinance 2018-07-02 to New Business as Item 6.D. 204 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 205 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 206 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 207 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 208 

  209 

 210 

ITEM 6. NEW BUSINESS          211 

 212 

A. Tax Report - County Manager Ken Bowman presented the monthly tax report. 213 

 214 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



19 

 

 215 
 216 

 217 

 218 
 219 

 220 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



20 

 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 221 

 222 
30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 223 

 224 
30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 225 

 226 
 227 

 228 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



21 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 229 

 230 
 231 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 232 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 233 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 234 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 235 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 236 

  237 

B. Citizen News – Brenda Bowman 238 

 239 

Mrs. Brenda Bowman presented to the Board a proposal for a county newsletter that will be 240 

distributed to every household in Camden County for the purpose of providing to its citizens 241 

valuable information on the services available through the county departments, as well as a tool 242 

to find answers and/or to address matters of interest and concern.  The newsletter will also 243 

highlight Camden County’s assets, upcoming activities, historical information and 244 

accomplishments and milestones reached by citizens. 245 

 246 

Upon completion of the presentation, the board discussed in more detail the option of utilizing 247 

The Daily Advance for home delivery, with the exception of apartments, townhouses, mobile 248 

homes and campgrounds, an 8 to 12 page newsletter, said delivery to be accomplished over a 3-249 

day period.  Stacks of extras would be provided to the county for the purpose of delivering to the 250 

offices of those complexes.  The cost range for this option is $1500-$2000.   251 

 252 

Motion to approve Citizen News project, the $1500-$2000 option. 253 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 254 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 255 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 256 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 257 

  258 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



22 

 

C. Station 12 Fire Truck Housing 259 

 260 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented to the Board a proposal to place a structure on county 261 

property located behind the administration building to temporarily house two fire trucks that 262 

were displaced due to the Station 12 fire.  The insurance company has provided $32,824.52 as 263 

extra expense less the deduction for salvage value of the temporary structure after the. 8-month 264 

period of restoration.   265 

 266 

Motion to select a vendor to install the structure to house two of the Station 12 fire trucks. 267 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 268 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 269 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 270 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 271 

  272 

D. Ordinance 2018-07-02 Rezoning Request 273 

 274 

 275 
 276 

 277 

 278 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



23 

 

 279 
 280 

Motion that the requested map amendment is consistent with both the CAMA land use 281 

plan and comprehensive plan as it allows for densities as low as one acre and is an 282 

expansion of an adjacent zoning. 283 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 284 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 285 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 286 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 287 

  288 

Motion to approve Ordinance 2018-07-02 Rezoning Application to rezone property from 289 

basic residential R3-2 to basic residential R3-1. 290 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 291 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 292 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 293 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 294 

  295 

 296 

 297 

 298 

 299 

 300 

 301 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



24 

 

ITEM 7. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         302 

 303 

1. Planning Board – Fletcher Harris (reappointment) 304 

2. Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee – Tammie Krauss (appointment) 305 

3. Tourism Development Authority – Donna Stewart & Adam Carver (reappointments) 306 

 307 

Motion to approve the board appointments as presented. 308 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 309 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 310 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 311 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 312 

  313 

ITEM 8. CONSENT AGENDA         314 

 315 

1. BOC Special Meeting Minutes – April 19, 2017 316 

2. BOC Work Session Minutes – January 11, 2018 317 

3. BOC Work Session Minutes – May 2, 2018 318 

4. BOC Work Session Minutes – May 22, 2018 319 

5. BOC Special Meeting Minutes – June 21, 2018 320 

6. BOC Work Session Minutes – July 9, 2018 321 

7. BOC/Planning Minutes Joint Meeting - July 18, 2018 322 

8. BOC/Planning Minutes Joint Meeting - July 25, 2018 323 

9. BOC Minutes – August 6, 2018 324 

10. FY 18-19 Budget Amendments 325 

 326 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



25 

 

 327 

 328 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



26 

 

 329 
11. Tax Collection Report 330 

 331 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



27 

 

12. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 332 

 333 

 334 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



28 

 

 335 

 336 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



29 

 

13. DMV Monthly Report 337 

 338 

 339 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



30 

 

14. Order for the Collection of Taxes 340 

 341 

 342 
15. Surplus Property Request 343 

 344 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



31 

 

16. Resolution 2018-09-01 Protecting NC Farmers 345 

 346 
 347 

17. Senior Center General Purpose Funding FY 2018-2019 348 

 349 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



32 

 

 350 
 351 

 352 
 353 

 354 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



33 

 

 355 
 356 

 357 
 358 

 359 

 360 

 361 

 362 

 363 

 364 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



34 

 

 365 
 366 

 367 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



35 

 

 368 
 369 

 370 
 371 

 372 
 373 

 374 

 375 

 376 

 377 

 378 

 379 

 380 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



36 

 

 381 
 382 

 383 
 384 

 385 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



37 

 

 386 
 387 

18. Emergency Operations Promulgation Statement 388 

 389 

 390 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



38 

 

19. RFP – Hurricane Matthew Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Management and 391 

Implementation Services 392 

 393 

 394 

 395 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



39 

 

 396 

 397 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



40 

 

 398 
 399 

 400 
 401 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



41 

 

 402 
 403 

 404 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



42 

 

 405 
 406 

 407 
 408 

 409 

 410 

 411 

 412 

 413 

 414 

 415 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



43 

 

 416 

 417 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



44 

 

 418 
 419 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 420 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 421 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 422 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 423 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 424 

  425 

ITEM 9. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES  426 

  427 

The following items were provided to the commissioners for information purposes: 428 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 429 

B. Register of Deeds Report 430 

C. Library Report 431 

D. NC Forest Service Annual Report FY 2017-2018 432 

 433 

ITEM 10. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT       434 

  435 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 436 

 9/11 Ceremony – Tuesday, September 11, 2018 at 8:30 AM  437 

 Milltown Boat Ramp repair is moving forward. 438 

 Construction at the new wastewater treatment plant will be suspended for a few days in 439 

anticipation of Hurricane Florence. 440 

 Success Academy for 3’s and 4’s is open and serving students. 441 

 Hurricane Florence Update – Camden County will be under a State of Emergency as of 442 

Tuesday, September 11, 2018 at 8:00 AM. 443 

 444 

ITEM 11. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS        445 

  446 

None. 447 

 448 

ADJOURN 449 

With no further matters for discussion Vice Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn the 450 

meeting. 451 

 452 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



45 

 

Motion to adjourn the meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 453 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 454 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 455 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs 456 
ABSENT: Riggs, Munro 457 

  458 

Vice Chairman White adjourned the meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 8:42 PM. 459 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

09
10

18
  (

21
73

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 1
0,

 2
01

8)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.3 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Humphries, Finance Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Humphries 

 
Item Title   FY 18-19 Budget Amendment 

 

Attachments: 18-19-BA009 Lagoon Liner Engineering (DOC) 

18-19-BA010 JCPC PT Salaries (DOC) 

18-19-BA011 Recycling Hauls (DOC) 

18-19-BA012 SRO Vehicle (DOC) 

18-19-BA013 SCVFD Truck Shelter (DOC) 

 

Summary:  BUA 009 Lagoon Liner Engineering 

  BUA 010 JCPC Adj Salary to Travel/Train 

  BUA 011 Solid Waste-Recycling  

  BUA 012 School Resource Officer Vehicle 

  BUA 013 SCVFD Temporary Shelter 

 

Recommendation:  Approve 

8.3

Packet Pg. 107



                                                       2018-19-BA009    

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2019. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General & Water/Sewer Projects Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

Revenues 

10399400-439900 Fund Balance $6,530 

29330760-434511 County Contribution $6,530 

 

 

Expenses 

106900-539730 South Camden Water & Sewer  $6,530 

297500-574421 Wastewater Lagoon $6,530 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds to upgrade Wastewater Lagoon 

Liner. 

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of October, 2018. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

8-
19

-B
A

00
9 

L
ag

o
o

n
 L

in
er

 E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

  (
21

82
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



                                                       2018-19-BA010    

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2019. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

Expenses 

106200-503000 Part Time Salaries     $500 

106200-514000 Travel $500 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to a salary expense line for unused salaries. 

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of October, 2018. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.3.b

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

8-
19

-B
A

01
0 

JC
P

C
 P

T
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

 (
21

82
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



                                                       2018-19-BA011    

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2019. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General & Water/Sewer Projects Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

Revenues 

10399400-439900 Fund Balance $29,250 

 

 

Expenses 

105800-545350 Recycling Hauls  $29,250 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds increase in costs for Recycling 

Hauls. 

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of October, 2018. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.3.c

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

8-
19

-B
A

01
1 

R
ec

yc
lin

g
 H

au
ls

  (
21

82
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



                                                       2018-19-BA012    

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2019. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General & Water/Sewer Projects Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

Revenues 

10390400 School System Contribution $29,000 

 

 

Expenses 

105100-574103 Capital Outlay-Vehicle  $29,000 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds for an SRO Vehicle. 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of October, 2018. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.3.d

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

8-
19

-B
A

01
2 

S
R

O
 V

eh
ic

le
  (

21
82

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



                                                       2018-19-BA013    

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2019. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the SCVFD Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

Revenue 

40330530-402002 Insurance Reimbursement $469,079 

       

 

Expenses 

405300-599300 Insured Loss Damages $413,395 

405300-574000 Capital Outlay $  55,684 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds for Fire Station damages, repairs 

and replacement. 

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of October, 2018. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.3.e

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

8-
19

-B
A

01
3 

S
C

V
F

D
 T

ru
ck

 S
h

el
te

r 
 (

21
82

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.4 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.4

Packet Pg. 113



8.4.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

21
70

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.5 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Terri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Terri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20180925104212158.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 (Non vehicle) 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.5

Packet Pg. 115



8.5.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
80

92
51

04
21

21
58

.p
d

f 
 (

21
80

 :
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.6 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Unified Development Ordinance 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2018-09-01

 (DOC) 

Ordinance No 2018-09-01 Revised UDO (DOCX) 

 

See attached. 

8.6

Packet Pg. 117



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   October 1, 2018 

Attachments:   Ordinance 2018-09-01  

     

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public hearing - Ordinance 2018-09-
01;  Revised Chapters 151 (Unified 
Development Ordinance) and 152 
(Watershed Protection Ordinance) of the 
Camden County Code of Ordinances 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The proposed revised Unified Development Ordinance is the result of a multi-year effort 

and included multiple stake holder interviews, initial public meetings, work sessions with 

a review committee, the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners. A draft of the 

proposed revised UDO is available for public review on the county web site and through 

the Planning Office.  The proposed Unified Development Ordinance contains the revised 

FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) for consideration that will become effective 

December 21, 2018.    

 
  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Set Public Hearing for November 14, 2018. 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 

C. Riggs         ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

G. Meiggs       ____ 

T. White          ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

C. Riggs         ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

T. White         ____ 
R. Krainiak    ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

8.6.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
8-

09
-0

1 
 (

21
76

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 U

n
if

ie
d

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
)



 

 
 

Ordinance No. 2018-09-01 

 

 

An Ordinance Amending 

Chapter 151, Unified Development Ordinance  

Of Camden County, North Carolina 
 

 

WHEREAS, through review and administration of Camden County Code of Ordinances, 

Chapter 151 Unified Development Ordinance, the Board of Commissioners, Planning Board, and 

County staff have found erratic, disorganized, and outdated ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, in July 2015, Camden County initiated an update and reorganization of the Unified 

Development Ordinance with Code Wright Planners; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment was further reviewed by land use law attorney T.C. 

Morphis of the Brough Law Firm, PLLC; and  

 

WHEREAS,  FEMA has issued revised Flood Insurance Rate Maps for Camden County which 

will become effective December 21, 2018 to which the new maps and amended flood damage 

prevention ordinance language shall be incorporated into this amendment; and 

 

WHEREAS, discussion of the ordinance amendment was held as subject of a public meeting of 

the Camden County Planning Board in May and June 2018, during which interested parties and 

staff were given opportunity to make comments to the board on the proposed amendment; and  

 

WHEREAS, the public hearing for the Board of Commissioners consideration of the proposed 

amendments was advertised in the Daily Advance Newspaper on September 14th and 21st, 2018 

and the public hearing was in fact held before the Camden County Board of Commissioners on 

October 1, 2018 during which interested parties and staff were given opportunity to make 

comments to the Board of Commissioners on the proposed amendment; and 

 

WHEREAS, after calling the hearing to order and having received all comments and documents 

presented to the Board of Commissioners, the board has determined that it is in the best interest 

of Camden County that the Adoption Draft of the Unified Development Ordinance (August 27, 

2018), as amended by the attached errata sheet be adopted and codified;  and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Camden County Board of Commissioners 

that the amended Chapter 151, Unified Development Ordinance of Camden County, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein, is adopted and codified in its entirety, replacing and repealing the  

8.6.b

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o

 2
01

8-
09

-0
1 

R
ev

is
ed

 U
D

O
  (

21
76

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 U

n
if

ie
d

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
)



previous Chapter 151 Unified Development Ordinance and Chapter 152 Watershed Protection 

Ordinance of Camden County plus all other ordinances that may be in conflict with the same, 

including without limitation, the repeal of Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 

Ordinances. 

 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this            day of                                          

2018. 

 

 

      County of Camden 

    

      _____________________________ 

      Clayton Riggs, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board       (SEAL) 

 

 

 

8.6.b

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o

 2
01

8-
09

-0
1 

R
ev

is
ed

 U
D

O
  (

21
76

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 U

n
if

ie
d

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 9.A 

Meeting Date:   October 01, 2018 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report - August 2018 

 

Attachments: 18_08 (DOCX) 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 121



Camden County Public Library 

August 2018 Statistics 

 
 

Visitor Count 1892 
Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3998 

Computer/ Wireless Use 898/754 
Questions Answered 449 

Juvenile Programs/Attendance 11/143 

Teen/Tween Programs/Attendance 1/20 
Adult Programs/Attendance 5/65 

One-on-One Sessions/Attendance 0/0 
Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 12/158 

Days/Hours Open 28/248 

# Items in Collection 16,975 
Library Card Holders 3,344 

 
 

 

 

 

Comparison by Year 

2016-2018 

    

           
 

 

4764 4519
3938

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Aug 2016 Aug 2017 Aug 2018

Circulation

2451 2241 1892

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

Aug 2016 Aug 2017 Aug 2018

Attendance

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

8_
08

  (
21

69
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
01

8)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	6:00 PM Closed Session
	7:00 PM Reconvene BOC Meeting / Welcome
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	1. Rev. William Sawyer

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	4. Presentations
	1. 2171 : Department Update - Brian Lannon, Soil & Water Conservation
	Printout: 2171 : Department Update - Brian Lannon, Soil & Water Conservation
	a. What is a Soil and Water Conservation District (002)
	b. Board Retreat -Mission objectives actions
	c. Clearing and Snagging Projects Summary


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Old Business
	A. 2175 : Revised Unified Development Ordinance Update - Dan Porter
	Printout: 2175 : Revised Unified Development Ordinance Update - Dan Porter


	6. New Business
	A. 2179 : August Monthly Report
	Printout: 2179 : August Monthly Report
	a. 20180925110223399.pdf

	B. 2183 : Rosenwald Community Center - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 2183 : Rosenwald Community Center - Ken Bowman
	a. Rosenwald Community Center

	C. 2181 : Public Services Complex / Administration Campus - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 2181 : Public Services Complex / Administration Campus - Ken Bowman
	a. 2018.08.30 - Camden County Admin Building

	D. 2174 : Vanguard Modular Building Systems - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 2174 : Vanguard Modular Building Systems - Ken Bowman
	a. 2017 STOCK OFFICES - Sell Sheet web
	b. 2016 Flex.Office-4OFF 2pc
	c. 2016 Flex.Office-6OFF 3pc
	d. 2018 Flex Office Generic Specification


	7. Board Appointments
	1. 2178 : Tourism Development Authority - Vice Chairman Tom White
	Printout: 2178 : Tourism Development Authority - Vice Chairman Tom White


	8. Consent Agenda
	1. 2172 : BOC Special Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2018
	Printout: 2172 : BOC Special Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2018
	a. BOC_SP_08272018_Minutes

	2. 2173 : BOC Minutes - September 10, 2018
	Printout: 2173 : BOC Minutes - September 10, 2018
	a. bocminutes_091018

	3. 2182 : FY 18-19 Budget Amendment
	Printout: 2182 : FY 18-19 Budget Amendment
	a. 18-19-BA009 Lagoon Liner Engineering
	b. 18-19-BA010 JCPC PT Salaries
	c. 18-19-BA011 Recycling Hauls
	d. 18-19-BA012 SRO Vehicle
	e. 18-19-BA013 SCVFD Truck Shelter

	4. 2170 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2170 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	5. 2180 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2180 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20180925104212158.pdf

	6. 2176 : Set Public Hearing - Unified Development Ordinance
	Printout: 2176 : Set Public Hearing - Unified Development Ordinance
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2018-09-01
	b. Ordinance No 2018-09-01 Revised UDO


	9. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2169 : Library Report - August 2018
	Printout: 2169 : Library Report - August 2018
	a. 18_08


	10. County Manager's Report
	11. Commissioners' Reports
	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.1 · 2171 : Department Update - Brian Lannon, Soil & Water Conservation
	4.1.a · What is a Soil and Water Conservation District (002)
	4.1.b · Board Retreat -Mission objectives actions
	4.1.c · Clearing and Snagging Projects Summary

	5.A · 2175 : Revised Unified Development Ordinance Update - Dan Porter
	6.A · 2179 : August Monthly Report
	6.A.a · 20180925110223399.pdf

	6.B · 2183 : Rosenwald Community Center - Ken Bowman
	6.B.a · Rosenwald Community Center

	6.C · 2181 : Public Services Complex / Administration Campus - Ken Bowman
	6.C.a · 2018.08.30 - Camden County Admin Building

	6.D · 2174 : Vanguard Modular Building Systems - Ken Bowman
	6.D.a · 2017 STOCK OFFICES - Sell Sheet web
	6.D.b · 2016 Flex.Office-4OFF 2pc
	6.D.c · 2016 Flex.Office-6OFF 3pc
	6.D.d · 2018 Flex Office Generic Specification

	7.1 · 2178 : Tourism Development Authority - Vice Chairman Tom White
	8.1 · 2172 : BOC Special Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2018
	8.1.a · BOC_SP_08272018_Minutes

	8.2 · 2173 : BOC Minutes - September 10, 2018
	8.2.a · bocminutes_091018

	8.3 · 2182 : FY 18-19 Budget Amendment
	8.3.a · 18-19-BA009 Lagoon Liner Engineering
	8.3.b · 18-19-BA010 JCPC PT Salaries
	8.3.c · 18-19-BA011 Recycling Hauls
	8.3.d · 18-19-BA012 SRO Vehicle
	8.3.e · 18-19-BA013 SCVFD Truck Shelter

	8.4 · 2170 : Tax Collection Report
	8.4.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.5 · 2180 : Refunds Over $100.00
	8.5.a · 20180925104212158.pdf

	8.6 · 2176 : Set Public Hearing - Unified Development Ordinance
	8.6.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2018-09-01
	8.6.b · Ordinance No 2018-09-01 Revised UDO

	9.A · 2169 : Library Report - August 2018
	9.A.a · 18_08



